
STREETS COMMITTEE MINUTES 
APRIL 7, 2015 

 
The Streets Committee meeting was held on April 7, 2015 at North Royalton City Hall, 14600 State Road. The 
meeting was called to order at 6:37 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Committee Members: Chair Paul Marnecheck, Vice Chair Larry Antoskiewicz; Council:  Dan 
Kasaris, Dan Langshaw, Steve Muller, Gary Petrusky; Administration: Mayor Robert Stefanik, Service 
Director Nick Cinquepalmi, City Engineer Mark Schmitzer; Other: Lou Krzepina. 
 
Moved by Mr. Antoskiewicz, seconded by Mr. Marnecheck to excuse Mr. Nickell. Yeas: 2. Nays: 0. Motion 
carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Moved by Mr. Antoskiewicz, seconded by Mr. Marnecheck to approve the March 3, 2015 minutes. Yeas: 2. 
Nays: 0. Motion carried.   
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
1. Sprague Road 

Mr. Schmitzer said that there was a progress meeting with all the cities and the contractor to reconvene on 
this project. They started again on Monday. He said they are planning to have the traffic one way 
eastbound, unless they decide to get the catch basins on site which is expected to be tomorrow. He said 
that they anticipate getting the project completed by late June, early July and this will include coming back 
and finishing the work they need to perform in North Royalton. He said final striping needs to be done and 
edge reflectors need to be put in. We have an area of the road that has puddled, and we need to come up 
with a plan to correct this. Mr. Schmitzer said that his suggestion to the contractor is that they replace 4 or 
5 full panels so that everything will drain properly in this area. QCI, who are our inspectors, support this 
solution. He said that driveway aprons will be completed as well. He said there is a drainage issue near 
Thornhurst by the culvert. Mr. Schmitzer said that he will be meeting with Parma’s engineer to look at 
what we believe to be a couple of clogged culverts coming down towards the big culvert. The water is not 
getting into the culvert, it is jumping and flooding out onto the street. He said that we also know that there 
is a residence in North Royalton where there was a portion of the creek that was piped in. We don’t know 
who piped it in but it is a choke point. He said that the culvert inspector for the county agreed that this is a 
choke point that needs to be removed. Mr. Schmitzer said that he is going to get this removed and restore 
the stream in this area so that the water will flow as intended. He said the culvert under Sprague Road is 3 
feet tall and 4 feet wide and then there is a 36 inch round pipe downstream that is rotted and has separated 
joints, so this does not help matters either.  

 
2. Issue 1 Funding 

Mayor Stefanik said there is nothing to report for this month. 
 
3. North Royalton Alternative Transportation Study 
 

Mr. Marnecheck said that Mr. Jordan provided the committee with the following report via email: 
 
“The North Royalton Transportation Study stakeholders met with NOACA staff last month. The Council 
President was present for the meeting. At that meeting the NOACA staff presented the results of the online 
survey and the existing conditions study. The online survey, in addition to the comments they had at their 
first community meeting, provided some valuable feedback for the study. The North Royalton 
transportation study survey and public meeting received more feedback than all of the other ongoing 
technical assistance grant projects combined. 
 
At the stakeholders meeting, the stakeholders had a number of follow-up issues for the NOACA staff to 
incorporate into their preliminary recommendations. I did receive a redraft. However, I have discovered 
some further discrepancies which we will be discussing with the NOACA staff this coming Friday. Once 



Streets Committee April 7, 2015 Page 2 
 

these errors and issues are incorporated we will be sharing them at the next community meeting scheduled 
either for late April or early May. Subsequent to the public meeting there will be another stakeholder 
meeting and the report will be presented to the appropriate board or Council committee.” 
 

4. Service Department Report 
Mr. Cinquepalmi reviewed the report, a copy of which is attached to these minutes. He said that they are 
switching over from snow removal to street repair and maintenance. He said that the street sweeper and 
vac truck have been out every day since the last snowfall. He said that they are also getting ready to start 
the crack sealing, patching, etc. He said that weather permitting, the asphalt plants will open mid-April and 
once they do they will start the asphalt work. He said once Bennett Road is done, this should reduce the 
amount of cold patch and labor we use by 50% next year because a lot of our resources throughout the 
winter, even on second and third shift, are spent on Bennett Road.  
 
Mr. Marnecheck asked about the work done on March 11, 2015 at 6681 Sherwood. Mr. Cinquepalmi said 
there was a back up in one of the catch basins.  We pumped the catch basin out at night and then the 
following day we sent the jet truck out and we were able to break all of the calcium loose within an 8 foot 
section of pipe from the basin to the main and get it completely cleared.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Outstanding punch list items 

Mr. Schmitzer that he had a complaint from a resident regarding cracking on the edge of the asphalt 
adjacent to the concrete curb. He said that they will look into this and said that a lot of this is due to the 
frost heave; the curbs didn’t move but the pavement did, so they cracked on the edges. Once the frost is 
gone, they will settle back down but he will look into this since this is a warranty punch list item. He said 
that he has contacted the contractor and they will work this out. Mr. Marnecheck asked what street this 
involves. Mr. Schmitzer said that the resident lives on Julia, but stated that the problem exists on Jay 
Drive, James Drive and the stub to Harley Hills as well. Mr. Schmitzer said that he drove the area recently 
and saw a little bit of cracking but probably not to the extent that the resident saw because they tend to self 
heal once the frost is gone, but they don’t always heal properly and he wants to make sure that it is done 
right and will follow up with the contractor on this. He said that there are other punch list items that we are 
going to make sure are addressed and will have the contractor give us a schedule on when those will be 
completed. 

 
Mr. Kasaris said that a few years ago in Ward 2 we overlaid concrete streets with asphalt where we also 
put a thin layer of material between the asphalt and the concrete. He asked how they made out over the 
winter. Mayor Stefanik and Mr. Petrusky said they have both been up there and they look very good. Mr. 
Kasaris said that conversely when you look at State Road which was done in 2011, it didn’t do very well 
over the winter and it didn’t have the layer between the concrete and asphalt. There was a brief discussion 
on preventive crack sealing of the roads. Mr. Petrusky said that there was a large hump in the road at 
Wallings and Foxwood. He said it has since settled down and asked if we are going to investigate the 
cause of the problem. Mr. Cinquepalmi said once everything has had a chance to dry out, they will 
certainly investigate and correct this issue. 

 
2. Ord. 15-44 - lease/purchase of Service Department vehicles and equipment  

Mr. Cinquepalmi said that these 3 vehicles will be identical to the vehicle we ordered last January. Mr. 
Cinquepalmi said that he expects delivery of these new vehicles by fall. He explained that we are taking 
two V-bodies and salt spreaders from two existing trucks and installing them on these new vehicles. The 
existing trucks will still be in service for the department year round. Mr. Antoskiewicz asked Mr. Dean to 
review how we will be funding this purchase. Mr. Dean said that we created a Service Capital 
Improvement Fund that receives 15% of the Cable Franchise Fees. Last year we received $471,000 in 
cable fees, so approximately $70,000 a year will be going into this fund. He said that we are looking at a 7 
year lease on these vehicles and that will put us under the $70,000 that is being set aside in this fund. He 
said that he received 5 quotes from different financers and Huntington was the lowest by far for the lease. 



Streets Committee April 7, 2015 Page 3 
 

He said we will make our first payment as soon as they are delivered and the payments will be $66,000 per 
year for 7 years. Mr. Kasaris said that he does not remember receiving this much money before from the 
Cable Franchise Fee Fund. Mr. Dean said that a lot of that money went right into the Future Capital 
Improvement Fund. Council changed this in 2013 and allocated it to separate funds for the first time. He 
said last year we received $471,000 and these fees don’t fluctuate too much from year to year. He said that 
in years past we have averaged around $400,000.00 per year for these cable fees. Mayor Stefanik said that 
U-Verse is now available in North Royalton and this may be attracting Dish and Direct TV customers. 

 
Mr. Muller asked how old are some of our current trucks since we are adding 3 more to the fleet. Mr. 
Cinquepalmi said we can generally keep a truck for 12-15 years. Once we get these new trucks we are 
going to be in really good shape. He said three years ago we had a problem where we needed to update the 
pickup fleet and we went through this phase for a few years. All of our trucks are currently in very good 
shape and we have helped the Recreation Department out with a few trucks. He said our oldest trucks 
would be our two tandem trucks and they are model year 2001. He said that the single axel trucks do a lot 
of the work and that is what we are purchasing now. Mr. Muller asked if the two we are retiring are over 
10 years old. Mr. Cinquepalmi said yes, he said they are model year 1997, so they are 18 years old. 
 

Moved by Mr. Marnecheck, seconded by Mr. Antoskiewicz to recommend approval of Ordinance 15-44 to 
Council. Yeas: 3. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 
 
3. Summer help 

Mayor Stefanik said that in addition to what we had in the Recreation Department, we had two part time 
summer laborers in the Service Department last year. He said that we are down 4 full time people in the 
Service Department due to illness/injury so he would like to hire 6 part time summer help this year instead 
of 2. These positions are needed to pick up the slack so that we won’t fall behind in getting the necessary 
work done. He said that our income tax receipts are up so we can find the money for these positions. He 
said that we don’t want to start spending money just because our receipts are up, but when it comes to 
something like this the payback is important. He said that this will be coming to Council in a few weeks 
but he wanted to have Council verbally approve this proposed plan. Mr. Marnecheck said that it is a great 
idea and agreed that we can’t afford to fall behind. Mr. Antoskiewicz said that we need money for 4 
additional part time summer laborers in the Service Department. The money is already covered for the 
Recreation Department and we have already budgeted for 2 employees in the Service Department. Mayor 
Stefanik said this is correct. There will also be 2 part time summer laborers in the Fire Department that are 
already budgeted for as well. Mr. Kasaris asked for the pay rate. Mayor Stefanik said that it is just under 
$10.00/hour and they work full time hours for the summer. They receive no benefits. Mr. Muller asked if 
we have an estimate of the total cost. Mayor Stefanik said that they estimate that it will be around 
$16,000.00. He felt that we should budget $20,000.00 just to be on the safe side. He asked Council if they 
see a problem with this at this time. No one said they had a problem. Mr. Langshaw asked Mr. Dean if he 
is comfortable with this amount. Mr. Dean said yes and he does not feel that this will hurt our ending 
balance. Mayor Stefanik said that with the note refinancing that we did recently we saved $340,000.00 
over the life of those notes, which comes to about $25,000.00 a year. He said that our bond rating has been 
reaffirmed so we are good for the next few years. He reiterated that this is not a reason to go on a spending 
spree, but we do need to get these people working. He said that this will be brought to Council in an 
amending appropriations ordinance for the next meeting. 

 
MISCELLANEOUS 
Mr. Petrusky asked when we will being updating the street rating program. Mayor Stefanik said we will 
probably be looking at this in the next month or so. He said it depends on how much money we are up this 
year and if we want to put more money into streets. This will decide how many more roads we are going to do. 
Right now most of the money in this year’s streets program is going to pay for our share of the cost for Bennett 
Road. He said we have about $220,000 right now to spend on a combination of new construction or joint 
repair. He said we are leaning towards doing a lot of joint repair in order to try and get more life out of our 
streets. Mr. Kasaris asked if there has been any thought towards bonding the $400,000.00 for Bennett Road. 



Streets Committee April 7, 2015 Page 4 
 
Mr. Dean said with all of the financing that we just did, we are not looking at going back to the markets at this 
time. The money is budgeted for this project. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by Mr. Antoskiewicz, seconded by Mr. Marnecheck to adjourn the April 7, 2015 meeting. Yeas: 2. 
Nays: 0. Motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 7:12 p.m.  
 
 








	040715 Streets Minutes
	040715 Streets Minutes - EXHIBIT

